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1. Name of Property

historic name: Spinks Plantation
other names/site number:

2. Location

street & number: ¥ mile northeast of Irene Road, % mile north of Muddy Springs Road and Irene Road junction not for publication _na__

city or town:  Magnolia vicinity _ X_
state: Mississippi code: county: Pike code: 113  zip code: 39652
3. State/Federal Agency Certification

As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended, | hereby certify that
this __x__ nomination ____ request for determination of eligibility meets the documentation standards for
registering properties in the National Register of Historic Places and meets the procedural and professional
requirements set forth in 36 CFR Part 60. In my opinion, the property __x__ meets _____ does not meet the
National Register Criteria. | recommend that this property be considered significant ____ nationally ___ statewide

inuation sheet for additional comments.)

a%%/ 28 0"

Signature of certifying official

State Historic Preservation Officer
State or Federal agency and bureau

In my opinion, the property meets does not meet the National Register criteria. (___ See continuation
sheet for additional comments.)

Signature of commenting or other official Date

State or Federal agency and bureau

4.  National Park Service Certification [

I, heyeby cenrtify that this property is:
\/_entered in the National Register,
___See continuation sheet.
____determined eligible for the
National Register
___See continuation sheet.
_____determined not eligible for the
National Register
_____removed from the National Register
_____other (explain):

ate of Action

)1-14-07




5. Classification

Ownership of Property: Private

Category of Property: Buildings

Name of related multiple property listing
(Enter "N/A" if property is not part of a multiple property listing.)
NA

Number of Resources within Property:
(Do not include previously listed resources in the count)

Contributing Noncontributing
3 3 buildings
sites
structures
objects
3 3 Total

Number of contributing resources previously listed
in the National Register None

NA

6. Function or Use

Historic Functions: DOMESTIC/single dwelling

COMMERCE/TRADE/general store

Current Functions: VACANT/NOT IN USE

7. Description

Architectural Classification(s): OTHER/log structure

Materials:
foundation: wood
roof. tin

walls: wood
other

Narrative Description:

See Continuation Sheets



8. Statement of Significance

Applicable National Register Criteria
A Property is associated with events that
have made a significant contribution to
the broad patterns of our history.

B Property is associated with the lives of
persons significant in our past.
X C Property embodies the distinctive

characteristics of a type, period, or method
of construction or represents the work of a
master, or possesses high artistic values, or
represents a significant and distinguishable
entity whose compaonents lack individual
distinction.

D Property has yielded, or is likely to yield
information important in prehistory or history.

Areas of Significance
Architecture

Period of Significance
c. 1875, c. 1900, c. 1910

Significant Dates

Criteria Considerations: N/A

Property is:

___A owned by a religious institution or used for
religious purposes.

___ B removed from its original location.

___Cc a birthplace or a grave. Significant Person(s)

Db a cemetery. N/A

__E a reconstructed building, object,or structure. Cultural Affiliation(s)

____F a commemorative property. N/A

G less than 50 years of age or achieved significance Architect/Builder
within the past 50 years. N/A

Narrative Statement of Significance: See continuation sheets.

9. Major Bibliographical References

Bibliography See continuation sheet.

Previous documentation on file (NPS) Primary Location of Additional Data

___preliminary determination of individual listing

State Historic Preservation Office

(36 CFR 67) has been requested. : Other State agency

____previously listed in the National Register
____ previously determined eligible by the National Register

Federal agency
Local government

___designated a National Historic Landmark University
___recorded by Historic American Buildings Survey Other
# Name of repository:

____recorded by Historic American Engineering Record
#




10. Geographical Data

Acreage of Property:

UTM References: Zone Easting Northing Zone Easting Northing
A c
B D

____See continuation sheet.

Verbal Boundary Description See continuation sheet.

Boundary Justification: See continuation sheet.

11. Form Prepared By

namettitle: Robert Combs

organization; date: September 4, 2007
street & number: 818 Washington Street telephone: 601-442-5255
city or town: Natchez state: MS zip code: 39120

Additional text by William M. Gatlin, MDAH

Additional Documentation

Submit the following items with the completed form:
Continuation Sheets
Maps
A USGS map (7.5 or 15 minute series) indicating the property's location.
A sketch map for historic districts and properties having large acreage or numerous resources.
Photographs
Representative black and white photographs of the property.
Additional items (Check with the SHPO or FPO for any additional items)

Property Owner(s)

name: Great River, LLC

street & number: telephone: 601-442-9888
city or town: Natchez state: MS zip code: 39120

Paperwork Reduction Act Statement: This information is being collected for applications to the National
Register of Historic Places to nominate propetrties for listing or determine eligibility for listing, to list properties, and
to amend existing listings. Response 1o this request is required to obtain a benefit in accordance with the National
Historic Preservation Act, as amended (16 U.S.C. 470 et seq.).

Estimated Burden Statement: Public reporting burden for this form is estimated to average 18.1 hours per
response including the time for reviewing instructions, gathering and maintaining data, and completing and
reviewing the form. Direct comments regarding this burden estimate or any aspect of this form to the-Chief,
Administrative Services Division, National Park Service, P.O. Box 37127, Washington, DC 20013-7127; and the
Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reductions Projects (1024-0018), Washington, DC 20503.
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The Spinks Plantation is located in a rural area of western Pike County, about %%
mile north of the intersection of Muddy Springs Road and Irene Road. . The site is near
the Tangipahoa River, not far from the Pike County and Amite County border. The
three surviving contributing structures are grouped closely together in a lightly wooded
area about % mile off Irene Road. The main house is a 1 and % story balloon frame
building with a gable roof. The freestanding kitchen, a one story gable timber frame
building, is attached to the main house by a covered walkway. The one-story balloon
frame store building is located a short distance to the west.

The kitchen is the oldest of the three buildings, built in c. 1875. The main house
was built in two phases beginning with a four room hall and parlor with a two room loft
constructed c. 1900. The second phase, approximately 1910, added two rooms to the
east on the first floor and enlarged the east room of the second story loft. The front
porch was extended at that time. The store building was also built ¢.1910.

Kitchen

The building now designated as the “kitchen” was built in approximately 1875. It
is a one-story timber frame building with board and batten siding and a gable roof, now
covered with tin. The building rests on large hexagonal cedar blocks which support
hewn sills and 12x2.5" vertically sawn joists. The front fagade, facing south, presents a
gable end with a room centered between two open porches covered by the eaves of the
main roof. The western porch connects to the main house, located shortly to the south,
by a covered walkway. The western porch extends approximately half the length of the
building and wraps about 1/5 across the south facade. The deck is covered by planks
with two supporting posts holding the roof and connected by a single rail. Steps
descend to the west. The center room on the south fagade has one small 6/6 window.
The east porch extends about 1/3 of the length of the building and wraps 1/5 across the
south fagcade. There are no posts or rails. The south wall under the porch contains a
3/1 window. '

The east porch is open on the east elevation. The east wall under the porch has
one door opening into an interior room. Two small 3/1 windows, located on the east
exterior wall adjacent to the porch, are the only openings on that elevation. The north
elevation has one door without steps. A small shed roof projection separates the door
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from two 6/6 windows. The west elevation has one 6/6 window in the exterior wall.
Under the porch area are a 6/6 window and a board and batten door.

The kitchen consists of five interior rooms. A southern room, located between
the porches, may have been a parlor. There are plank floors with unfinished horizontal
plank walls and ceilings. The south wall has bead board paneling. The room has two
windows, both with simple surrounds. Doors open to the porches on the east and west
walls. An interior door opens to a large room to the north. This room has vertical plank
walls separating it from other interior rooms. The north interior wall has horizontal
planks. A counter with a sink, certainly a later addition, sits between the two windows
visible on the north exterior elevation. A cook stove, almost certainly a later addition, is
on the southern interior wall. A doorway with no door opens to the west room. There is
an empty transom which probably had a six-light window. The western room has a
single window. Opposite the doorway to the western room is a similar doorway to the
east rooms. This doorway contains a six-light transom. There are two rooms to the
east, one with a door to the north, and an adjacent room with the two windows.

Main House

The one and one-half story main house sits on an east-west axis. The primary
fagade faces south. An undercut gallery extends across the south fagade. Although it
originally extended across the entire south elevation, the southeast corner was
enclosed at some point to create a room. The roof is supported by six posts and there
is a simple rail between the posts. Toward the west is a 6/6 double hung window and
two side-by-side four panel doors. The western door provides access to the first floor
while the second door opens to an interior stair to the upper floor. The south elevation
also has paired double-hung 6/6 windows and a single 6/6 double hung window, both
covered by the porch. A single door enters the room on the east end from the porch
while the south exterior wall of the addition contains no openings.

A brick chimney dominates the east elevation, a gable end, has a brick chimney,
slightly offset to the left. There is a small six-light window in the room added to the
porch. On the first floor there is a single 6/6 double hung window on the south side of
the chimney and two double hung 6/6 windows to the north. Smaller 4/4 double hung
windows flank the chimney on the second floor.
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The north elevation has a covered door near the east end adjacent to a single
6/6 double hung window. Paired double hung 6/6 windows are centered in the north
elevation. A door leads from the north face to the covered walkway leading to the
kitchen with a single 6/6 double hung window located to the west.

The west elevation has brick chimney, slightly offset to the south. Single 3/3
double hung windows flank the chimney on the first floor while smaller 6/6 windows
flank the chimney on the second floor.

The entire exterior is clad in machine-cut clapboards. A seam is apparent on the
clapboard on the south elevation where the house was enlarged in ¢. 1910. The roof is
covered in tin.

The interior consists of seven rooms on the first floor and two rooms on the
second floor. The original four room section is accessed by the western door which
opens into a large room that was probably a formal parlor. The floors have narrow
tongue-in-groove planks, while the walls are finished in five-inch horizontal planks. A
fireplace in the western wall has a standardized catalog mantel. A door to the south
leads to a short hall with a rear door leading to the rear kitchen. A room opens off the
hall to the east. A second door in the north wall of the parlor opens to a smaller corner
room. Both of these secondary rooms have floors with broader planks than the parlor.

A door on the east wall of the parlor opens into a room of nearly the same size. It
also has plank floors, but these are also a bit broader than the planks in the parlor. An
enclosed stair occupies the southwest corner of the room. A door in the east wall leads
into another large room in the c. 1910 addition a fireplace in the east wall. A much
simpler mantel adorns the fireplace. A door on the south leads into the room added to
the porch, probably for an early interior bathroom. A door in the north wall leads to rear
room that has an exterior door. All the interior rooms have horizontal plank walls and
plank ceilings. All the walls and ceilings remain unpainted. Interior doors are four
paneled.

The second floor is reached by a stair through the eastern door off the porch.
There is no interior access to the second floor. The stairs lead to a large room that
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The second floor is reached by a stair through the eastern door off the porch.
There is no interior access to the second floor. The stairs lead to a large room that
extends to the east wall. The floors, walls and ceilings are covered with unpainted
planks. A seam in the floor, walls and ceilings shows where the house was enlarged.
The second floor exterior wall was completely removed during the addition. A door in
the west wall leads to a smaller room with the same interior finish. A panel in the south
wall of the large rooms allows access to the eaves where the circular sawn 5x2 joists
are visible.

The Store

The store building is located to the west of the house. It is a one story balloon
framed building with clapboard siding and a tin gable roof. The south facade has a
single door under a rough shed roof. The east elevation has a center single door with a
window covered by board and batten shutters. There are no openings along the north
elevation. A centered double door is flanked by two windows on the west elevation.

The interior consists of one large room with plank floors, walls and ceiling.
Several wooden counters remain affixed to the exterior walls. Heat was provided by a
cast iron stove with a tin flue.

Outbuildings

Three support buildings remain on the property. These include a smokehouse, a
storage shed and an outhouse. The date of construction for these buildings cannot be
verified and they are severely decayed. Therefore all three are considered
noncontributing.

Integrity

The main house is well maintained, with a newer tin roof. Since the addition in
¢.1910, only minor alterations have been made. A bathroom was added to the
southeastern corner by closing in the end of the front gallery. Electrical service was
added with lines attached to the interior walls. Otherwise the main house retains a high
degree of integrity.
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Both the kitchen and the store suffer from deferred maintenance. The kitchen
interior was modified at some point with the installation of a counter and sink. There
was probably a fireplace and chimney which have been removed. However, neither
building has been significantly altered and both retain historic integrity.
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The Spinks Plantation is eligible for listing on the National Register of Historic
Places under Criteria C as a local example of the architecture of a late 19™ century
farmstead. It illustrates a progression of building styles from the timber frame kitchen
structure to balloon framing used in the main house and store. It also illustrates how a
rural family home progressed through multiple additions to meet the changing needs
and social status of the owner.

The family cemetery located about a mile to the east of the family home provides
a history of the Guy-Spinks family who lived on the plantation. The Guys were early
settlers of Pike County who migrated from North Carolina the early 1800s. The family
cemetery establishes that the family was settled on the plantation by 1843, the date of
the earliest burial. Like most early settlers, the Guy family engaged in subsistence
agriculture, hunting and trapping, and later by raising cattle and hogs.

It is likely the family erected shelters earlier than the current buildings. However,
those structures are no longer standing. By c. 1875, the family built a small timber
framed structure that rested on large cedar blocks. Now designated the kitchen, based
on historic use, it is likely the building is the oldest of the extant structures. The joists
are vertically sawn rather than hand hewn. This suggests that milled lumber was
available from a local source, possibly on the property. The interior bead board finish of
the main room also suggests it was more than a work space.

By the turn of the century, the Guy and Spinks families had intermarried. The
family had probably increased in size and wealth. Around 1900 they built the main
house, with four rooms on the first floor and two rooms on the second floor. By 1900,
circular sawn lumber was available and was used in the balloon framing of the main
house. Some degree of affluence is reflected in the simple classical mantel and narrow
planks used in the parlor space. Within a short period of time, the house was again
expanded adding additional rooms on the first floor and a larger space on the second
floor. Although no records are available to confirm it, the family store was built at or
near the same time and may have been the source of the capital necessary for the new
construction.

Local tradition, and the recollection of older residents of the area, establishes
that the store opened around the turn of the century. The store sold dry goods, food
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staples, home-made furniture, such as parson’s benches, willow branch chairs, and
headboards, farming implements and tools, grain, and seeds. Although there is no
documentation, older residents in the area also remember the store serving as a rural
postal station.

Besides being a commercial center for residents of western Pike County, the
store also served as a social center. The rural community, located eight miles from the
nearest town, met in the store, discussed the weather and local news. Even with the
advent of the motor age, the store continued to serve as a local community meeting
place. The general store operated until the early 1960s.

The buildings comprising the Spinks Plantation illuminate the past for the
western area of Pike County. They illustrate the changing techniques of building and
reflect the changing economy in a rural area of southwest Mississippi.
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Verbal Boundary Description

The boundary consists of the five acres located in Township 2 North, Range 7 East.
Within Section 7, E ¥ of the NE %; Pt. of the E %2 of the SW %; Pt. W Y2 of SE ¥, E %
of the SE .

Boundary Justification

The designated five acres represents the immediate area historically associated with
the main house, outbuildings and store within the larger boundaries of the Spinks
Plantation.
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Photographs

For all photographs:

1. Spinks Plantation

2. Pike County, Mississippi
3. Jennifer Baughn

4. February 13, 2007

5. Mississippi Department of Archives and History, Jackson, MS

Photograph 1: Exterior, Main house, view to WNW

Photograph 2: Exterior, Main House and Kitchen, view to S

Photograph 3: Exterior, Kitchen, view to SW
Photograph 4: Exterior, Kitchen, view to SE
Photograph 5: Exterior Kitchen, view to NNW
Photograph 6: Exterior, Store, view to NW
Photograph 7: Exterior, Store, view to E
Photograph 8: Exterior, Main House, view to N

Photograph 9: Interior, Main House, S front room, view to WSW

Photograph 10: Interior, Main House, S front room, view to N

Photograph 11: Interior, Kitchen, E room, view to S
Photograph 12: Interior, Kitchen, W room, view to S
Photograph 13: Interior, Store, view to S
Photograph 14: Interior, Store, view to N
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